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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Empire Mall Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Empire Mall Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(Including Other Comprehensive income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, and profit and other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's
report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Director’s report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance under SA 720 ‘The
Auditor’s responsibilities Relating to Other Information’.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

a4 The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
N fith respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
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financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the financial
statements.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, were audited by another
auditor whose report dated May 28, 2022 expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C”.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2023.

(1) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that such parties shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(2) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (funding parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the funding parties
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
and

(3) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management in this regard, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule
11(e) as provided under (1) and (2) above, contain any material mis-statement.

v.  The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

vi. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, and accordingly reporting under this clause is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.
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3. In our opinion, according to information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors is within the limits prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and
the rules thereunder.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

Bhavik L. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 122071 i SN
UDIN: 23122071BGXNRQ2098 79+~

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2023
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF EMPIRE MALL PRIVATE LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

e A

/

Bhavik L. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 122071 "B Chartec® 2=
UDIN: 23122071BGXNRQ2098 "~

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2023
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF EMPIRE MALL PRIVATE LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Empire Mall Private Limited on the
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

@)

A. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

B. The Company hasno intangible assets. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(i)(a)(B)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment property have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals during the year and no material discrepancies were identified
on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) as
disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued its
property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during
the year. Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated or
pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988, as amended and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions stated
in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

1.

(a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management. In our opinion,
the frequency of verification, coverage & procedure of such verification is reasonable and
appropriate. having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its operations. No
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such
physical verification of inventories.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 Crores in aggregate from Banks/ financial
institutions on the basis of security of current assets during the year. Accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

1.

(a) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has provided loans or
provided advances in the nature of loans, or given guarantee, or provided security to any other
g entity.

& (A) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.
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(B) The details of such loans or advances and guarantee or security to parties other than
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars Loans Advances | Guarantees | Security
in the
nature of
loans

Aggregate amount

granted/provided during the
year (including interest
accrued) )

- Others 1,441.08 - -
Balance Outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect
of above cases ;

- Others 15,991.27 - -

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedure
conducted by us, in our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant
of loans during the year are prima facie not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The
Company has not provided any guarantees, given security or granted any advances in the nature
of loans during the year.

(¢) In case of the loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest have been stipulated and the borrowers have been regular in the payment of
the principal and interest as demanded/stipulated by the Company during the year.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no amounts overdue for more than ninety days in respect
of the loan granted by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the loan granted by the Company
has not fallen due during the year. Hence, the requirements under paragraph 3(iii) (e) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanation provided to us, the Company has granted loans
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. The details of the
same are as follows:

(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars All Parties Promoters* Related Parties*

Aggregate amount of loans

- Repayable on demand (A) 6,033.67 - 6,033.67

- Agreement does not specify any - -
terms or period of repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 6,033.67 - 6,033.67 |

Percentage of loans/ advances in 37.68% s 37.68%
nature of loans to the total loans
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* as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013

iv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and
security made, as applicable.

v.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the rules
framed there under.

vi.  The provisions of sub-Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as
the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for the
business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3
(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

vii.

(@) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, cess, and other
statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the Company with appropriate
authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. The Company’s operations during
the year did not give rise to any liability for value added tax, sales tax, service tax and excise
duty.

There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
cess, and other statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub clause (a) above which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

viii.  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are
not accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income
which has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ix.
(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment of interest thereon to any

lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
g, Procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
\¢, financial institution or government or any government authority.
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(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation provided to us, no money was
raised by way of term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph
3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate, or joint venture as defined under
Companies Act, 2013. Hence reporting under paragraph 3 (ix)(e) and (f) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

X.
(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company did

not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully, partly, or optionally convertible debentures during the year. Hence,
the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xi.

(a) Based on our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance
with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we report that no material fraud by the Company nor on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company
during the course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023,
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

xii.  The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) (a) to
(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Xiv.

(@) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
~ commensurate with the size and nature of its business.
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(b) We have considered internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under
audit.

xv.  According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, during the year the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to Company.

xvi.
(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under
paragraph 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of its group. Hence, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xvii.  Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has not incurred cash losses in
the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. Hence, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3 (xvii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xviii.  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence, the provisions
stated in paragraph 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

xix.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing
at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and
when they fall due.

xx.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our verification, the
provisions of Section 135 of the Act are not applicable for the year to the Company. Hence,
reporting under paragraph 3 (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xxi.  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
Subsidiary, Associate or Joint Venture as defined under Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

12&-;!2‘3

:

Bhavik L. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 122071
UDIN: 23122071BGXNRQ2098

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2023
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF EMPIRE MALL PRIVATE LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the Members of Empire Mall Private Limited on the
Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Empire Mall
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) (the
“Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10)
of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial
&, statements.

nSS0a)
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MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

g i A

-

Bhavik L. Shah

Partner

Membership No. 122071
UDIN: 23122071BGXNRQ2098

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 30, 2023
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Empire Mall Private Limited

Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Financial assets

Loans

Other financial assets
Deferred tax asset (net)
Non-current tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprise and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprise and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies
Notes to the financial statements

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For MS K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 105047W

T30 4 £

Bhavik L. Shah ~*
Partner
Membership No: 122071

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2023

As at Asat
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
3 41.31 30.18
4 16,680.67 17,508.00
5 9,957.60 -
6 923.80 956.00
7 1,591.14 1,597.93
8 270.18 196.01
9 492.85 536.56
29,957.55 20,824.68
10 708.05 1,319.05
11 171.56 80.24
12 739.58 1,043.34
13 1,077.68 1,551.69
14 673.03 162.02
5 6,056.84 14,571.73
15 6.34 4.50
16 146.77 133.97
9,579.85 18,866.54
39,537.40 39,691.22
17 13,602.25 13,602.25
17.1 8,138.26 6,293.44
21,740.51 19,895.69
18 14,448.84 17,211.55
19 1,027.78 851.72
20 30.30 22.61
21 19.16 16.46
15,526.08 18,102.34
22 881.00 -
23
23 19.31 222
23 357.18 374.66
24 32.52 59.15
25 969.27 1,246.58
26 11.53 10.58
2,270.81 1,693.19
39,537.40 39,691.22
2.2
3-51

Stidhanshu Chaturvedi
Director
DIN 05151360

Chief Fgnancial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2023




Empire Mall Private Limited B

Statement of Profit and Loss

for the year ended 31 March 2023 ) .

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Year Ended Year Ended
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Income
Revenue from operations 27 5,803.18 3,425.10
Other income 28 1,667.14 1,523.91
Total Income 7,470.32 4,949.01
Expenses
Cost of material consumed 29 16.01 52.78
Change in inventory of finished goods and work in progress 29 611.00 100.00
Employee benefits expense 30 188.74 168.09
Finance costs 31 1,977.34 1,884.63
Depreciation expense 32 1,004.76 1,077.20
Other expenses 33 1,821.20 1,433.22
Total expenses 5,619.06 4,715.93
Profit before income tax 1,851.26 233.08
Less : Income Tax expense: 8

Current tax - -

Deferred tax (credit) / charge ~6.71 (146.41°
Total tax expenses ' 6.71 (146.41;
Profit for the year (A) 1,844.55 379.49
Other Comprehensive Income ( OCI )
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligation 36 0.33 (7.04,
- Income tax effect on above (0.08) 1.77
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year, net of tax (B) 0.25 (5.27
Total comprehensive income for the year (A+B) 1,844.80 374.22
Earnings per equity share 34
(per equity share of nominal value Rs. 10 each)

Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 1.36 0.28
Significant accounting policies 2.2

Notes to the financial statements 3-51

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For M S K A & Associates For and half of the Board of Directors of

Empire Mall Private Limited

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 105047W

=) 4 S/

Bhavik L. Shah™
Partner
Membership No: 122071

Director
7155347

Prasa re
Chief Kinancial Officer

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2023 Date : May 30, 2023



Empire Mall Private Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

A. Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation expense
(Gain) on sale of investments
Provision for expected credit loss
Interest income
Notional corporate guarantee expense
Unwinding of security deposits
Finance costs
Operating cash flows before working capital changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital:
Decrease in inventories

(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Increase /(Decrease) in other financial liabilities
(Decrease) /Increase in trade payables
(Decrease) /Increase in other liablities

Increase in provisions

Cash flows generated from operations

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds received)

Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for property, plant and equipment and Investment property
(Purchase)/ Sale of Investments
Redemption / maturity of bank deposits
(Increase) in loans
Interest received
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of long-term borrowings
Interest paid
Net cash flows generated from/(used in) financing activities (C)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents considered only for the purpose of cash flow statement

Cash in hand
In bank current accounts

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1,851.26 233.08
1,004.76 1,077.20
(1.91) @17
4.60 71.93
(1,614.57) (1,493.94)
42,50 42.50
20.04 11.02
1,914.80 1,831.11
3,221.48 1,768.73
611.00 100.00
(1.84) 37.84
(11.59) 29.74
299.16 (31.57)
129.39 (53.28)
0.39) 148.64
(269.62) 252.06
3.99 2.88
3,981.58 2,255.04
(74.17) (79.38)
3,907.41 2,175.66
(188.56) (63.94)
(89.41) 14.42
(511.01) (1.57)
(1,410.51) (1,355.28)
1,614.57 1,493.94
(584.92) 87.59
(1,881.71) -
(1,914.80) (1,156.33)
(3,796.51) (1,156.33)
(474.02) 1,106.91
1,551.69 444.77
1,077.68 1,551.69
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.05 0.53
1,077.63 1,551.16
1,077.68 1,551.69

2\
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Empire Mall Private Limited : -

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2023

The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard - 7 (‘Ind AS 7’) on Cash Flow Statement prescribed in
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Non-cash changes

Fair value Carrent/
Particulars 31 March 2022 Cash flows changes Non - current 31 March 2023
classification
| Long-term borrowings 17,211.55 (1,881.71) - (881.00) 14,448.84
Total liabilities from financing activities 17,211.55 (1,881.71) - (881.00) 14,448 .84

Non-cash changes

Fair value | _ CWrent/
Particulars 31 March 2021 Cash flows Non - current 31 March 2022
changes .
classification
Long-term borrowings 16,536.77 674.78 - - 17,211.55
Total liabilities from financing activities 16,536.77 674.78 - - 17,211.55

As per our report of even date attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Empire Mall Private Limited

For M S K A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 105047W

'Tgvbgkb)\

Bhavik L. Shah
Partner
Membership No: 122071

Director
IN 07155347

Director

DIN 05151360

Chief Fi —\ancz‘al Officer
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : May 30, 2023 Date : May 30, 2023
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Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1

Corporate information

Empire Mall Private Limited (the Company) is a company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of
developing, owning and operating of shopping malls and commercial premises.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and other relevant provisions of

the Act and amendments, as applicable.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly
issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard
requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on May 30, 2023.

Details of accounting policies are included in Note 2.2 to the financial statements.

(b) Basis of measurement

These Financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following
items:

Items Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value (refer note 2.2 (A))

Net defined benefit (asset) / liability ~ Fair value of plan assets less present value of defined
obligations

(c) Functional and presentation currency

These Financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All the financial information have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and
all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise stated.




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jor the yvear ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements

(e)

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting
in a material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2023 is included in the following notes:

- Note 8 - recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which
tax losses carried forward can be used;

- Note 36 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

- Notes 21, 26 and 35 - recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key
assumptions about the likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources;

- Note 39 - impairment of financial assets;

- Note 2.2 (B) and 2.2 (C) - estimation of useful life of property, plant and equipment and
investment properties;

- Note 2.2 (C) — estimation of fair value of investment property; and

- Note 2.2 (G) and 43- Evaluation of satisfaction of performance obligation for the purpose of
revenue recognition.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quotes prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data
as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its
entirely in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to
the entire measurement.




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)

Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the
following notes:

- Note 39 — financial instruments; and
- Note 4 — investment property

(f) Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-current.
An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the entity’s
normal operating cycle;

(b) itis held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c) itis expected to be realised within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) itis cash or a cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(a) itis expected to be settled in, the entity’s normal operating cycle;
(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(c) itis due to be settled within twelve months after the balance sheet date; or

(d) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability
for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out above which are in accordance with the Schedule III to the
Act.

Based on the nature of services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of current — non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

(g) Going concern

The Company is engaged in the business of mixed used development at Aurangabad. Based on the
future business plans and cash flows of the Company, the management believes that the Company,
as at 31 March 2023, will continue to operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future, realize
its assets and discharge its liabilities as they fall due for payment, in the normal course of business.




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)
(h) Recent Accounting Developments

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules from time to time. On March
31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1,
2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - The amendment require companies to disclose
their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions of primary users of general-purpose financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on
transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the
scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption)
so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - The amendments
will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The
definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if
accounting policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves
measurement uncertainty.

The Company does not expect these amendments to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

2.2 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial:statements.

A. Financial instruments

Financial assets and/or financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes
party to a contract embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets,
financial liabilities and financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at transaction
price and where such price is different from fair value, at fair value. However, for trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are initially measured
at transaction price. Transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from, as the case may be, the
fair value of such financial assets or liabilities on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss.




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jfor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Non derivative financial assets
a. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets are
held within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets at amortised cost are represented by trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, employee and other advances and eligible current
and non-current assets.

b. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these
financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows that give rise on specified dates to solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and by selling financial assets.

c. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it is measured at
amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition.
The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Non derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables maturing
within 1 year from balance sheet date, the carrying amount approximate fair value due to
short maturity of these instruments,

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies
for derecognition under Ind AS 109. A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability)
is derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
balance sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the Financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

A. Property, plant and equipment

)

(i)

(iii)

(v)

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its
intended use and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the
site on which it is located.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost
of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing
the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives,
then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and
equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment of the company has been provided as per
written down value method as per the estimated useful lives of the respective item of
Property, Plant and Equipment indicated in Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Act.

The details are set out as below:

Asset :Jcsteful life as per Schedule II of the
Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Computers 3years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent
advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best
represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

Capital work-in progress and capital advances

Capital work-in progress comprises of the cost of property, plant and equipment that are
not yet ready for their intended use as at the balance sheet date. Advances given towards
acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date are

: [ b
disclosed as ‘Other non-current &%%55‘?&& ;s
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B. Investment Property
(i) Recognition and measurement

Investment properties are held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but not for
sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. Investment properties are measured initially at their cost of
acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met
and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in statement
of profit and loss as incurred. Any gain or loss on disposal of investment property calculated as
the difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item is
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation on Investment Property has been provided as per written down value
method as per the useful lives indicated in Part ‘C’ of Schedule II of the Act.

The details are set out as below:

Asset Useful life estimated Useful life as per
sse by the management Schedule IT of the act
Amortised over the Amortised over the
Leasehold Land . . . .
primary period of the lease primary period of the lease
Plant and equipment 15 years 15 years
Buildings 60 years 60 years
Buildings (Tenant Capex) Over the period of lease term 60 years

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial
year-end and adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation and consequent
advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given above best
represent the period over which management expects to use these assets.

D. Impairment
(i)  Impairment of financial instruments

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is the
weighted-average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective
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(i)

risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company
is required to consider:

= All confractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and
extension) over the expected life of the assets.

* Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

Trade receivable:

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS
109, which requires measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that
result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

Other financial assets:

The Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit
losses.

When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default
occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make that assessment, the
Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance
sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available
without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since
initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have
low credit risk at the balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (other than goodwill) are evaluated
for recoverability whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from
other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating
unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. If the recoverable amount of an asset
(or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss.
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D. Employee benefits

@)

(i)

(iii)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays
fixed contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation
to pay further amounts.

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered
provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which
the related services are rendered by employees.

Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in future payments is available.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined
contribution plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and
deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset
for the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of
economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognised in OCI. The Company determines the net interest
expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying
the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plan are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change
in benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain
or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company
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recognises gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the
settlement occurs.

(iv)  Other long-term employee benefits

The Company net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine
its present value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is
measured on the basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.

E. Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflows of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Expected future
operating losses are not provided for.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the notes. Contingent liabilities are disclosed for,

- Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within
the control of the Company or

- Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount
of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the standalone financial statements. However, the
same are disclosed in the standalone financial statements where an inflow of economic
benefit is probable.

F. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for
those services. Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and
measurement when the contract has been approved by the parties to the contract, the parties
to the contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract.

The Group assesses the services promised in a contract and identifies distinct performance
obligations in the contract.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group’s contracts may
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()

(i)

include variable consideration including rebates, volume discounts and penalties. The
Group includes variable consideration as part of transaction price when there is a basis to
reasonably estimate the amount of the variable consideration and when it is probable that a
significant reversal of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is resolved.

The Company allocates the transaction price to each distinct performance obligation based
on the relative standalone selling price.

Revenue from real estate projects

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of properties comprising of
commercial units.

The Company recognises revenue when it determines the satisfaction of performance
obligations at a point in time. Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of
promised products to customer in an amount that reflects the consideration which the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those products.

In arrangements for sale of units the Company has applied the guidance in Ind AS 115,
Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue recognition criteria for
each distinct performance obligation. The arrangements with customers generally meet
the criteria for considering sale of units as distinct performance obligations. For
allocating the transaction price, the Company has measured the revenue in respect of
each performance obligation of a contract at its relative

standalone selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold
separately is the best evidence of its standalone selling price. The transaction price is
also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the contract includes a
significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted
to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the
customer.

For sale of units, the Company recognises revenue when its performance obligations
are satisfied and customer obtains control of the asset.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on
contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is
pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is
required, as per contractual terms.

Contract liabilities are recognised when there is billing in excess of revenue and
advance received from customers.

License fees and rental income

License and rental income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight
line basis over the lease term. Rental income earned from letting of space at the
properties is recognised in the period in which the performance obligation is satisfied.
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(iii)

()

Service charges

Service charges include common area maintenance, HVAC charges and parking
charges in respect of which revenue is recognised in the period in which the services
are being rendered.

Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue includes space on hire and kiosk income in respect of which

revenue is recognised in the period in which the services are being rendered.

All revenue is stated exclusive of goods and service tax.

F. Leases

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains, a
lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an asset the Company assesses whether:

- The contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capability
of a physical distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset
is not identified

- The Company has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the asset throughout the period of use; and

- The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. The Company has this right when
it has the decision making rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used.

As a Lessee
Right of use Asset

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease
commencement date. At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use
asset at cost which comprises initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received, any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the
lease.

Lease Liability

At the commencement date, a lessee shall measure the lease liability at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments shall be discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate.
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G. Income tax

(i)

(ii)

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity
or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or
loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous
years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to
be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle
the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for the financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognised in
respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised for:

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

- temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in
the foreseeable future; and

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax
losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in
case of a history of recent losses, the Company recognises a deferred tax asset only to the
extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary differences or there is convincing other
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax
asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at
each reporting date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable
respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.
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The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Defetred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultaneously.

Note on Section 115BAA

A new section 115BAA was inserted in the Income Tax Act. 1961, by The Government
of India on 20 September 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance 2019
which provides an option to companies for paying income tax at reduced rates in
accordance with the provisions/conditions defined in the said section. The Company has
decided to exercise the said option in preceding financial year.
G. Borrowing cost
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to real estate project development activities are
inventorised / capitalized as part of project cost.

Borrowing costs are inventorised / capitalised as part of project cost when the activities that are
necessary to prepare the inventory / asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Borrowing
costs are suspended from inventorisation / capitalisation when development work on the project
is interrupted for extended periods and there is no imminent certainty of recommencement of
work.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds..

H. Foreign exchange translation and accounting of foreign exchange transaction

(i) Initial Recognition

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the reporting currency, by applying
to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the
foreign currency at the date of the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the Company
uses a monthly average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of
the transactions.

(i) Conversion

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are reported using the
closing rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions
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(iii) Treatment of Exchange Difference

Exchange differences arising on settlement/ restatement of foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities of the Company are recognized as income or expense in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.

1. Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary
shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the period, adjusted for own shares held. Diluted EPS is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held, for the effects of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

J. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of cash on hand and at banks and cheques on hand,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

K. Other income

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate.

Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive arises and it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income can

be measured reliably.

Dividend income is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on the date the entity's
right to receive the payments is established

L. Exceptional items

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in
order to improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an
exceptional item and the same is disclosed in the notes to accounts.

M. Statements of cash flow

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing
and financing activities.

Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the profit
before tax excluding exceptional items for the effects of:

i. changes during the period in operating receivables and payables, transactions of a non-
cash nature;

ii. non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, unrealised foreign currency gains and

losses; and
ifi. all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows.
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N. Commitments

Commitments are future liability for contractual expenditure. Commitment are classified
and disclosed as follows:
i) Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not

provided for; and
ii) Other non-cancellable commitments, if any, to the extent they are considered material
and relevant in the opinion of management.

Other commitments related to sales/procurements made in the normal course of business
are not disclosed to avoid excessive details.
O. Inventories

Cost of land, borrowing costs, construction / development cost and other overheads
incidental to the projects undertaken are taken as the cost of project work-in-progress.

These inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value; cost is determined on
the weighted average method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

Furniture and

Particulars Fittings Computers Vehicle Total

Gross Block:

Balance as at 1 April 2021 35.56 6.29 0.09 41.94
Additions - 2.81 21.55 2436
Disposals - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 35.56 9.10 21.64 66.30
Additions 19.96 2.66 - 22.62
Disposals - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 55.52 11.76 21.64 88.92
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2021 25.67 440 - 30.07
Depreciation for the year 2.56 1.87 1.62 6.05
Disposals - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 28.23 6.27 1.62 36.12
Depreciation for the year 3.19 208 6.22 11.49
Disposals - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 31.42 8.35 7.84 47.61
Net Block:

At 31 March 2022 7.33 2.83 20.02 30.18

At 31 March 2023 24.10 341 13.80 41.31
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Note 4: Investment properties

A. Reconciliation of carrying amount

i Leasehold e Plant and

Particulars Jand * Building * Machine Total
Gross carrying amount:
Carrying amount as at 1 April 2021 3,205.65 19,177.04 2,569.16 24,951.85
Additions * - 5.34 3424 39.58
Deletions - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 3,205.65 19,182.38 2,603.40 24,991.43
Additions - 100.74 65.20 165.94
Deletions - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 3,205.65 19,283.12 2,668.60 25,157.37
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2021 320.28 4.347.97 1,744.03 6,412.28
Depreciation for the year 64.08 836.08 170.99 1,071.15
Balance as at 31 March 2022 - 384.36 5,184.05 1,915.02 7,483.43
Depreciation for the year 64.08 793.53 135.66 993.27
Balance as at 31 March 2023 448.44 5,977.58 2,050.68 8,476.70
Carrying amounts (net)
At 31 March 2022 2,821.29 13,998.33 688.38 17,508.00
At 31 March 2023 2,757.21 13,305.54 617.92 16,680.67

Fair Value

At 31 March 2022 39,624.89
At 31 March 2023 44,474.17

Notes:

* Land and building are mortgaged/hypothecated against the lease rental discounting loan taken from Financial Institution. (refer note 18).

B. Measurement of fair values

i. Fair value hierarchy
The fair value of investment property has been determined by external, independent property valuer, having appropriate recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience in the location and category of the property being valued.
The fair value measurement for the investment property has been categorised as a Level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation
technique used.

ii. Valuation technique
The companies investment properties consist of Retail Mall and Land Aurangabad. Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs
to valuation on investment properties are as follows:

Type Valuation Significant unobservable Inter-relationship between
P technique inputs (March 2023) significant unobservable inputs and
Investment property DCF method 1). Discount Rate; 16.5% to 18%;
(refer below) 2). Market capitalisation rate 9.5%to 11%
Valuation Significant unobservable Inter-relationship between
Type technigue inputs (March 2022) significant unobservable inputs and
DCF method 1). Discount Rate; 16.5% to 18%;
Investment property

(refer below) 2). Market capitalisation rate 11%
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Note 4: Investment properties
1ne Lompany IONOWS @iScounied casn IOW (ULK) MEInod. 1ne UL MEmod 1S a TMancial modelung [ecnnique basea on explicit

assumptions regarding the prospective income arising out of the development to be carried out on the subject land parcel. In case of a
valuation of a large land parcel like the subject property, where the development potential is realised over a period of time (i.e. time value of
money comes into the picture) and also where there are no or few immediate similar properties (i.e. comparable) available for comparison, the
DCF method considering relevant potential developments of the project is used.

C. Amount recognised in profit and loss for investment properties

Particulars ‘ 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Rental Income ) 4,888.19 3,038.08
Less: Direct Operating expenses from property that generated rental income 1,196.90 890.85
Profit from Investment Properties before Depreciation 3,691.29 2,147.23
Depreciation 993.27 1,071.15
Finance Cost 1,887.28 1,781.61
Profit from Investment Properties 810.74 (705.53)

D. The Company has no restriction on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or
develop investment properties or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements.
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31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note 5 : Loans
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Non-Current

To Others - =
- Festival Valley Developers Co Private Limited 9,957.60 -
Total Non-Current loans 9,957.60 -
Current

To related parties

Fellow subsidiary companies

- Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited 2,305.62 2,194.61
- Hagwood Commercial Developer Private Limited 3,728.05 3,387.41
To Others

- Festival Valley Developers Co Private Limited - 8,968.17
To employees 23.17 21.54
Total Current loans 6,056.84 14,571.73
Total loans 16,014.44 14,571.73

Loans and Advance to specified person

Type of Borrower Amount of loan or advance in | Percentage to the total Loans and
P the nature of loan outstanding | Advances in the nature of loans

[Related Parties 6,033.67] 5,582.02 37.68%] 3831%

Note 6 : Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good)
To parties other than related parties

Security deposits 352.43 352.83
Fixed deposits with financial institution* 571.37 603.17
Total other financial assets 923.80 956.00

* held against lease rental discounting loan from Financial Institution as Debt Service Reserve Account

Note 7 : Deferred tax asset (net)

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets:

Unabsorbed depreciation 916.71 850.88
Indexation of freehold land 1,487.78 1.388.12
Provision for expected credit loss 48.80 47.65
Ind AS 115 Adjustment 179.46 295.40
Provision for expenses disallowed under Section 43B of Income-tax Act, 1961 9.72 8.32
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax (liabilities):

Difference in depreciation in block of fixed assets as per Income-~tax Act, 1961 and depreciation allowable under book: (926.44) (859.19)
Financial liabilities carried at amortised cost (124.89) (133.25)

Total deferred tax assets (net) 1,591.14 1,597.93
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Note 8 : Non-current tax assets

a) Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current tax expense (A)
Current year - -

Deferred tax expense (B)
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 6.71 (146.41)

Tax expense (A+B) 6.71 (146.41)

A new section 115BAA was inserted in the Income Tax Act. 1961, by The Government of India on 20 September 2019 vide the Taxation Laws (Amendment)
Ordinance 2019 which provides an option to ries for paying i tax at reduced rates in accordance with the provisions/conditions defined in the said
The Ci has decided to exercise said option in preceding financial year.

(b) Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) Net of tax
benefit benefit
Items that will not be reclassified to profit
or loss
R of post employment benefit 033 (0.08) 0.25 (7.04) 1.77 (527
|obligation
0.33 (0.08) 0.25 (7.04) 177 (5.27)
{c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Profit / (loss) before tax 1.851.26 233.08
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (Current vear 25.168% and Previous Year 25.168%) 465.92 58.66
Tax effect of :
Effect of indexation benefit on land (99.66) (113.90)
Effect of current year / brought forward losses for which no deferred tax is recognised (465.92) (58.66)
Other Adjustments 106.36 (32.51)
Tax expense as per statement of profit and loss 6,70 (146.40)
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Tax deducted at source 270.18 196.01
Total Non-current tax assets 270.18 196.01

(d) Movement in deferred tax balances

Balance at 31 March 2023

Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 1,591.15

Net bal at  Recognisedin Adj t Recognised in Net Deferred tax Deferred tax
1 April 2022 the tof on opening ocCI asset liabilities
nrofit and lnes reserves

Investment Property 1,388.12 (99.66) - - 1,487.78 1.487.78 -
Trade Receivables 47.65 (1.15) - - 48.80 48.80 -
Ind AS 115 Adjustment 295.40 115.94 - - 179.46 179.46 -
Other financial liabilities (133.24) (8.43) - - (124.89) - 124.89
Provisions - - - 0.08 - - -
Tax assets (liabilities) before set-off 1,597.94 6.70 - 0.08 1,591.15 1,716.04 124.89
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities (124.89)
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 Murch 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Balance at 31 March 2022

Net bal at R din Adjustment Recognised in Net  Deferred tax Deferred tax
1 April 2021 the statement of  on opening 0CI asset liabilities
nrafit and lnec recervas
Investment Property 1,274.23 (113.90) - - 1,388.12 1.388.12 -
Trade Receivables 29.54 (18.10) - - 47.65 47.65 R
Ind AS 115 Adjustment 295.40 - - - 295.40 295.40
Other financial liabilities (149.43) (14.42) - = (133.24) - 133.24
Provisions - (1.77) - - -
Tax assets (liabilities) before set-off 1,449.73 (146.41) - (1.77) 1,597.94 1,731.17 133.24
Set-off of deferred tax liabilities (133.29)
Net deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) 1,597.94
(e) Unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax have not been recognised in respect of the following items :
Particulars Expiry 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unabsorbed depreciation Never Expire 12,132.34 13,025.62
Tax effect of unrecognised tax depreciation carried forward 2,136.75 2,427.41
AY 2023-24 - 586.77
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses carried forward - 147.68
2,136.75 2,575.09
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 9 : Other non-current assets
(Unsecured, considered good)

To related parties

Deferred guarantee expense on corporate guarantee given by ultimate holding company (Prozone Realty Limited

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Formerly known as Prozone Intu Properties Limited) 45346 505.96
To parties other than related parties

Capex deferred assets 29.39 30.60
Total other non-current assets 492.85 536.56
Note 10 : Inventories

(valued at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)

Finished Goods - commercial project (refer note 29) 708.05 1,319.05
Total Inventories 708.05 1,319.05
Note 12 : Trade receivables

(Unsecured, considered good)

To parties other than related parties

Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecured 739.58 1,043.34
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 193.91 189.31
Trade Receivables - credit impaired - -

933.49 1,232.65
Less: Transfer to current financial assets - (39.84)
Add : Interest income on present value of Trade receivable - 39.84
Less : Provision for expected credit loss (193.91) (189.31)
Total Trade receivables 739.58 1,043.34
Disclosure of trade receivable ageing
Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payments
FY 2022-23 Less than 6 | 6 months-1 23 More than 3
months year years yEars years 08!

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 607.59 70.40 60.85 0.74 - 739.58
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have

significant increase in credit risk 13.80 7.82 40.57 2.95 128.77 193.91
|Less:- Allowance for Bad and doubtful debts (Disputed +Undisputed) (193.91)
I Total 739.58

Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payments
FY 2021-22
Less than 6 | 6 months - 1 12 23 More than 3
months vear years years vears Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 648.56 15.18 323.62 20.36 35.61 1,043.34
(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have

sigmificant increase in credit risk 4.34 031 25.02 15.73 143.91 189.31
Less:- Allowance for Bad and doubtful debts (Disputed +Undisputed) (189.31)

Total

1,043.34




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 11 : Investments

Current investments
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Tarticutins Nos Rs in Jaks Nos Rs in lakhs
Unquoted
Investments valued at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), fully
paid up, unquoted, unless otherwise stated
Investment in mutual funds
Kotak Savings Fund - - 86,110.54 30.04
Aditya Birla Sun Life Savings Fund Collection A/c 36,962.32 171.56 11,397.77 50.19
Total current investments 36962.32 171.56 97508.31 80.24
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Details:
Aggregate of current investments:

171.56 80.24

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Note 13 : Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with Banks:

- in current accounts* 1,077.63 1,551.16
Cash on hand 0.05 053
Total Cash and cash equivalents 1,077.68 1,551.69
* includes Rs. 978.72 lakhs (PY 1176.63 lakhs) in escrow accounts maintained with lenders.

Note 14 : Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Balance with banks to the extent held as security deposit * 673.03 162.02
Total Bank Balances other than cash and cash equivalents 673.03 162.02

* includes Rs. 166.08 lakhs (PY 162.02 lakhs) against bank guarantee given by the company to Maharashtra electricity board, Municipal corporation etc.

Note 15 : Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)

To related party
Rental income receivable from Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited, fellow subsidiary (refer note 37 and

note below) - 2.06
To parties other than related parties

Deferred assets - Present value of trade receivable . 3984
Less: Amortisation of expenses - (39.84)
Lease rental adjustments - unbilled revenue 6.34 244
Total Others financial assets _6.34 4.50
Other financial assets includes amount due from companies in which there is common directors

Fellow subsidiary company

- Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited - 2.06
Note 16 : Other current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)

To related parties

Current portion of deferred guarantee expense on corporate guarantee given by ultimate holding company (Prozone

Realty Limited) 42.50 42.50
To parties other than related parties

Advance to vendors 18.73 24.50
Prepaid expenses 85.54 66.97
Total Other current assets 146.77 133.97
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 17 : Equity share capital

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised share capital
1,400 lakhs (31 March 2022: 1,400 lakhs) equity shares of Rs 10 each
14,000.00 14,000.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
1360.23 lakhs (31 March 2022: 1360.23 lakhs) equity shares of Rs 10 each, fully
paid up 13,602.25 13,602.25
13,602.25 13,602.25

a) Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

No. In Lakhs  Rs in lakhs | No. In Lakhs Rs in lakhs
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 1,360.23 13,602.25 1,360.23 13,602.25
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the period 1,360.23 13,602.25 1,360.23 13,602.25

b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity share is

entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity

shares held by the shareholders.

¢) Shares held by holding company

Particulars

31 March 2023

No. in lakhs

(Rs in lakhs)

31 March 2022

No. in lakhs

(Rs in lakhs)

Prozone Liberty International Limited,

Singapore, Holding company

472.09

4,720.90

472.09

4,720.90

d) Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

No. In Lakhs % holding | No. In Lakhs % holding
Prozone Liberty International Limited,

Singapore, Holding company 472.09 34.71 472.09 34.71
Triangle Real Estate India Projects Limited 476.08 35.00 476.08 35.00
Nailsfield Limited, Mauritius 364.44 26.79 364.44 26.79

(D Promotors’ shareholdings during the year

Shares held by promotors at the end of the year T % Change during

Promoter's Name No. of shares os(l:ar:s N the year
(i) Prozone Liberty International Limited, Singapore, Holding 4.72,09,000 34.71% Nil

company




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 17.1 : Other equity

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Mar 2022
Securities premium

Opening balance 16,929.36 16,929.36
Add: Addition during the year - -
Closing balance (refer sub-note 1) 16,929.36 16,929.36
Retained earnings

Opening balance (11,457.82) (11,837.31)
Add: (loss)/profit for the year 1,844.55 379.49
Closing balance (refer sub-note 2) (9,613.27) (11,457.82)
Other Comprehensive Income

Opening balance (9.82) 4.55)
Add: profit (loss) on fair value of defined benefit plans (net of

taxes 0.25 (5.27)
Closing balance (refer sub-note 2) (9.57) (9.82)

Equity Component on fair value of Corporate Guarantee
given by Parent

Opening balance 831.71 831.71
Add: addition for the year - -
Closing balance 831.711 831.71
Total Other equity 8,138.26 6,293.44
Sub-note:

Securities premium is received pursuant to the further issue of shares/ debentures at a premium net of the
1 share / debenture issue expenses. This is a non-distributable reserve except for the following instances
where the the share premium account may be applied;

i) towards the issue of unissued shares of the Company to the members of the Company as fully paid

bonus shares;

ii) for the purchase of its own shares or other securities;

iii) in writing off the preliminary expenses of the Company;

iv) in writing off the expenses of, or the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares or

debentures of the Company; and
v) in providing for the premium payable on the redemption of any redeemable preference shares or of any

debentures of the Company.

2 Retained earnings represents the accumulated profits of the Company.




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Note 18 : Borrowings
(Sectred)

Lease rental discounting loan from Financial Institution (refer note (a) and (b) below) 15,329.84 17,211.55
Less: Current maturities of long term debt (refer note 22) 881.00 .

Total Borrowings 14.448.84 17,211.55

Notes:

a)

b)

9

Rs. 8,601.24 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : Rs. 8,946.43 Lakhs) term loan from Financial Institution carrying interest @ 12.35 % p.a. (previous year 10.60 %
p-a.) (floating rate). The loan is repayable in 180 monthly installments inclusive of interest starting from May, 2017. The loan is secured by way of equitable
mortgage of land and buildings thereon in Aurangabad, rent receivables from both present and future income from Prozone Mall, against sold and unsold
units of Inventories. The above loans are further secured by corporate guarantee of the Ultimate Holding Company Prozone Realty Limited . One time
restructuring of loan as prescribed by RBI due to covid was implemented by financial institution during the financial year 2021-22,

Rs. 6942.58 Lakhs (31 March 2022 : Rs. 8501.52 lakhs) term loan from Financial Institution carrying interest @ 12.25 % p.a. (previous year 10.50% p.a.)
(floating rate). The loan is repayable in 175 monthly structured installments inclusive of interest starting from October 2019, The loan is secured by way of
equitable morigage of land and buildings thereon in Aurangabad, rent receivables from both present and future income from Prozone Mall, The above loans
are further secured by corporate guarantee of the Ultimate Holding Company Prozone Realty Lmited. One time restructuring of loan as prescribed by RBI
due to covid was implemented by financial institution during the financial year 2021-22.

The Company's exposure to interest rate and liquidity risks are disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements.

As per RBI’s Policy. the company had availed the relief provided by its lender by way of moratorium on principal and interest repayments on the loans
taken from financial institutions during the financial year 2021-22. and thus the repayment schedule has been modified accordingly.

Note 19 : Other financial liabilities

Lease deposit from tenants (non-interest bearing) 1,101.55 863.49
Less : Deferred liability (191.63) (186.40)
Add : Interest accrued on lease deposits on unwinding of finance costs 117.86 174.63
Total Other financial liabilities 1,027.78 851.72

Note 20 : Other non-current liabilities

Advance rent income - IND AS 191.63 186.40
Less : Amortisation of Above (135.03) (155.62)
Less: Current Portion (26.30) (8.17)
Deferred liabilities on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 30.30 22.61

Total Other non-current liabilities 30.30 22.61
==-0 LT
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 21 : Provisions
Particulars
Provision for Gratuity (refer note 36)
Total Provisions
Note 22 : Borrowings
(Secured)

Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note 18)

Total Borrowings

Note 23 : Trade payables

- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note below)
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises.

Total Trade payables

Note:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
19.16 16.46
19.16 16.46
881.00 -
881.00 -
19.31 222
357.18 374.66
376.49 376.88

Micro and small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 have been determined based on the

information available with the Company and the required disclosures are given below:

Disclosure relating to suppliers registered under MSMED Act based on the information available with the Company:

|Particulars 31 March 2023
(a) Amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accounting year:
Principal 18.48
Interest 0.83
Total 19.31
(b) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, along with the amount of the -
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.
(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but -
beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act.

0.83

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act.

31 March 2022

222
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as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Disclosure of trade payable ageing schedule

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Outstanding for followings periods from due date of payments
FY 2022-23 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year| years
Unbilled 83.67 - - - 83.67
Billed
(i) MSME 17.31 2.00 - - 19.31
(ii) Others 269.64 0.61 - 3.26 273.51
Total 376.49
Outstanding for followings periods from due date of payments ]
FY 2021-22 Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years
Unbilled 30.44 - - - 30.44
Billed
(i) MSME 1.38 - - 0.84 222
(ii) Others 338.28 1.75 1.88 2.31 34422
Total 376.88
Note 24 : Other financial liabilities
Retention money payable 12.33 18.15
Employee benefits payable 20.19 16.92
Payables in respect of capital assets - 24.08
Total Other financial liabilities 32.52 59.15
Note 25 : Other current liabilities
Advance from customers 503.81 796.30
Statutory dues payable 84.89 83.66
Other liabilities 354.28 354.28
Deferred liabilities of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 26.29 8.17
Capital expenditure deposit with tenants - 4.17
Total Other current liabilities 969.27 1,246.58
Note 26 : Provisions
Provision for employee benefits (refer note 36)
- provision for compensated absences 8.39 7.59
- provision for gratuity 3.14 2.99
11.53 10.58

Total Provisions
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Note 27 : Revenue from operations

Sale of residential property
Revenue from real estate projects

Sale of services
License fees and rental income

Service charges

Other operating revenue
Others (Space on Hire, Kiosk income and scrap income)

Total Revenue from operations
Note 28 : Other income

Gain on sale of investments
Interest income
- on income tax refund
- on fixed deposits
- on present value of Trade receivable
- on loans to related parties
- on loans to others
Rent on plant and equipment given to related party (refer note 37)

Total Other income

Note 29 : Cost of material consumed

Opening work in progress - commercial project

Add: construction and development costs

Less: transferred to closing balance of finished goods - commercial project (refer note 10)
Total Cost of commercial project

Note 30 : Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans (refer note 36)

Expenses related to compensated absences (refer note 36)

Contribution to provident fund and other funds (refer note 36)

Staff welfare expenses

Total Employee benefits expense

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
849.37 390.97
3,188.44 1,759.87
1,495.89 1,163.16
269.48 111.10
5,803.18 3,425.10
1.91 417
17.49 7.73
64.66 5771
- 39.84
588.00 582.62
944.42 806.04
25.80 25.80
1,667.14 1,523.91
1,319.05 1,419.05
16.01 52.78
1,335.06 1,471.83
708.05 1,319.05
627.01 152.78
173.89 156.21
4.14 3.08
135 0.46
6.25 6.69
i 1.65
188.74 168.09
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)
Note 31 : Finance costs

Interest expense
- on loan taken from Financial Institution
- on corporate guarantee given by parent company
- on unwinding of financial liability (security deposits)
- on late payments of statutory dues
- on late paymnet to MSME Creditors
Other borrowing costs
- bank charges and processing fees

Total Finance cost
Note 32 : Depreciation expense

Depreciation on property, plant & equipment
Depreciation on investment property

Total Depreciation expense
Note 33 : Other expenses

Rent (refer note 41)
Rates and taxes
Insurance
“ Repairs to building
Repairs to machinery
Electricity charges *
Security charges
Housekeeping charges
Printing and stationery
Director sitting fees
Communication expenses
Legal and professional fees
Travelling and conveyance
Amortisation of deferred asset (ie present value of Trade receivable)
Brokerage and commission
Advertisement and sales promotion expenses
Provision for expected credit loss
Payment to auditors (refer note 33 below)
Corporate and Social Responsibilty (CSR) expenditure (refer note 44)
Compensation expense
Miscellaneous expenses

Total Other expenses
Note 33 : Payment to auditors

Statutory audit fees
Others

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1,887.28 1,781.61
42.50 4250
20.04 11.02

2.39 25.46
0.83 0.36
24.30 23.68

1,977.34 1,884.63

11.49 6.05
993.27 1,071.15
1,004.76 1,077.20
1.68 1.94
190.08 218.26
46.94 49.68
100.94 120.63
52.49 3236
454.18 198.84
92.44 63.43
78.31 41.20
128 0.39
4.50 375
1.69 1.42
510.35 478.30
18.44 7.08
- 3984
28.79 0.98
124,08 47.03
4.60 71.93
8.00 15.45
- 7.14
74.55
27.86 33.56
1,821.20 1,433.22
8.00 15.00
N 0.45
8.00 15.45
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 : Earnings per equity share

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is set out below:

Basic and diluted EPS

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Basic earning per share

Net Profit for the year (Rs. In Lakhs) 1,844.55 379.49

Weighted average no. of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 13,60,23,000 13,60,23,000

Face Value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 10 10

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 1.36 0.28

Diluted earning per share

Net Profit for the year (Rs. In Lakhs) 1,844.55 379.49

Weighted average no. of Equity Shares outstanding during the year 13,60,23,000 13,60,23,000
1.36 0.28

Basic earnings per share (in Rs.)
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 : Discl ¢ relating to /! benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits'

1)  Defined benefit obligations and other long term employee benefits

Defined benefit plan

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,1972 under which an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to

£

specific benefits. The level of b

provided depends on the ber’s length of service and salary at retirement age.

The present value of obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Mothod, which recognizes each period of
service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

Funded Plan
Particulars Gratuil
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
a) |[Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 299 2.58
Past Service Cost - -
Interest Cost 1.15 0.50
Components of defined benefit costs recognized in profit or loss 4.14 3.08
b) |Included in Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (1.16) (0.43)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographi ption - -
Experience adjustments 091 7.49
Return on plan assets excluding included in I I (0.08) 0.02)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss recognized in OCI (0.33) 7.04
¢) |Recognised in Balance Sheet
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 26.12 23.00
Fair value of plan assets as at the end of the year (3.82) (3.55)
Net Liability 22.30 19.45
Changes in defined benefit obligati
() |Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Defined Benefit Obligation (“PBO”) at the beginning of the year 23.00 12.89
Service cost 299 2.58
Past Service Cost - -
Interest cost 1.34 0.71
Actuarial loss / (gain) (0.25) 7.06
Benefits paid (0.95) (0.24)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 26.13 23.00
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 : Disclosure relating to emplovee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Emplovee Benefits'

Funded Plan
Particulars Gratuity
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
€) |Change in fair value of assets
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 3.55 332
Interest Income 0.19 0.21
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income 0.08 0.02
Benefits paid N
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 3.82 3.55
f) |Reconciliation of net defined benefit liability
Net opening provision in books of accounts 19.44 9.56
Transfer in/(out) obligation - -
Emplovee Benefit Expense 4.13 3.08
Amounts recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (0.33) 7.04
Benefits paid by the company (0.95) 0.24)|
Closing provision in books of accounts 22.29 19.44
Unfunded Plan
Particulars Compensated absences
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Changes in defined benefit obligations
a) (Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year
Defined Benefit Obligation (“PBO”) at the beginning of the vear 7.58 755
Service cost 1.20 1.08
Interest cost 0.43 041
Actuarial loss / (gain) (0.28) (1.03)
Liabilities transferred in / (out)
Benefits paid (0.54) (0.43)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year 8.39 7.58
b) |Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Current Service Cost 1.20 1.08
Interest Cost 043 041
Actuarial loss / (zain) (0.28) (1.03)
Total included in 'employee benefit expense’ 1.35 0.46
¢) (Liability Recognised in Balance Sheet
Present value of unfunded obligation as at the end of the year 8.39 7.58
Net Liability .39 7.58
d) [Components of actuarial gain/losses on obligation
Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions (0.31) (0.11)
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumptions . -
Experience adjustments 0.03 (0.92)
Net actuarial (Gain) (0.28 (1.03)]
Particulars Gratuity Compensated ab
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
€) |Current/ non-current classification
Current 3.14 2.99 8.39 7.59
Non- current 19.16 16.46 - -
22.30 19.45 8.39 7.59




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 : Disclosure relating to emplovee benefits as per Ind AS 19 'Emplovee Benefits®

The following table izes the principal used for defined benefit obligation and compensated ab
Gratuity Comp ted absences

Actuarial assumptions 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.30% 6.40% 7.30% 6.40%
Salary escalation rate (% p.a.) * 5.10% 5.10% 5.10% 5.10%
‘Withdrawal Rates 10% at all ages | 10% atallages | 10% at all ages | 10% at all ages
Leave Availment Rate 5.00% 5.00%

Indian assured | Indian assured | Indian assured | Indian assured

. lives mortality | lives mortality | lives mortality | lives mortality
Mortality rate (2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14)
ultimate ultimate ultimate ultimate

* The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors,

Compensated absences

31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

i. Discount rate ‘
ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term

iii. Withdrawal rate (W.R.)

i. Discount rate
ii. Salary escalation rate - over a long-term

iii. Withdrawal rate (W.R.)

Gratuity
31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022

0.5% increase ]
25.51 2241
26.65 23.50
10% increase

26.28 23.06
0.5% decrease

26.75 23.62
25.65 22.47
10% decrease

25.94 22.93

0.5% increase

8.23 7.43
8.57 7.75
10% increase |
8.33 7.51

0.5% decrease
8.56 7.75
8.23 7.43
10% decrease |
8.46 7.67

Sensitivity for significant actuarial assumptions is computed by varying one actuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benefit

Maturity analysis of defined benefit obligation

. Gratuity Compensated ab: es

Farticules Cashflow Distribution (%) Cashflow Distribution (%)
1st Following Year 4.75 12.20% 1.83 15.50%
2nd Following Year 425 10.9% 1.60 13.60%
3rd Following Year 233 6.0% 1.08 9.10%
4th Following Year 2.58 6.6% 1.04 8.80%
5th Following Year 2.13 5.4% 0.85 7.20%
Sum of Year 6 o 10 Year 12.60 32.3% 3.25 27.40%
Total expected payments 28.64 9.65

C  Experience adjustments
Par 2022 2021 2020/ 2019) 2018
Present value of defined benefit obligation 23.00 12.89 10.69 7.21 6.45
Fair value of plan assets (3.55) (3.32) (3.66) (5.88) (5.57)
Deficit 19.45 9.57 7.03 1.33 0.88

II) Defined contribution plans

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement plan for qualifying employees. The provident fund plan
is operated by the regional provident fund commissioner. Under the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll

cost to the retirement contribution schemes to fund benefits.

a) The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year:

Contribution to Provident fund
Contribution to Maharashtra Labour Welfare fund (MLWF)
Contribution to ESIC

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
5.54 5.93
0.02 0.01
0.68 0.75
6.25 6.69
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Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 38 ; Segment reporting as required under Indian Accounting Standard 108, “Operating Segments”

Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 — Operating Segments, the managing director / director evaluates the Group’s
performance based on an analysis of various performance indicators by business segment. Accordingly information has been presented along

these segments. The accounting principles used in the preparation of the financial statement are consistently applied in individual segment to
prepare segment reporting. The Group is organised into business units based on its services and has two reportable segments, as follows:

1. Leasing.
2. Outright Sales

a) Information about Primary Segments - Business Segments

31 March 2023

Particulars ’ Leasing Qutright Sales Total
For the year ended 31 March 2023
Revenue
Segment revenue 4,953.81 849.37 5,803.18
Unallocated revenue - - -
5,803.18
Results
Segment results 2,125.86 35.60 2,161.46
Unallocated expenses - - -
Operation Profit 2,161.46
Finance costs 1,977.34
Other income (1,667.14)
Profit before tax ‘ 1,851.25
Tax expense 6.71
Profit for the year 1,844.53
As at 31 March 2023
Segment assets 33,490.86 917.41 34,408.27
Unallocated assets - - 5,129.13
Total assets (A) 39,537.40
Segment liabilities 17,259.52 ’ 537.38 17,796.90
Unallocated liabilities - - -
Total liabilities (B) 17,796.90
Capital employed (A) - (B) . 21,740.51




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 38 : Segment reporting as required under Indian Accounting Standard 108, “Operating Segments”

31 March 2022
Particulars Leasing Qutright Sales Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Revenue
Segment revenue 3,034.13 390.97 3,425.10
Unallocated revenue - - -
3,425.10
Results
Segment results 415.04 178.76 593.80
Unallocated expenses - -
Operation Profit 593.80
Finance costs 1,884.63
Other income (1,523.91)
Profit before tax 233.08
Tax expense (146.41)
Profit for the year 379.49
As at 31 March 2022
Segment assets 32,780.41 1,804.15 34,584.56
Unallocated assets - - 5.106.66
Total assets (A) 39,691.22
Segment liabilities 18,967.23 828.30 19,795.53
Unallocated liabilities - - -
Total liabilities (B) 19,795.53
Capital employed (A) - (B) 19,895.69
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Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 39 ; Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued) :

B) Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following rigks arising from financial instruments:
a. credit risk ;
b. liquidity risk ; and
c. market risk

Risk management framework

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establish and oversight of the Company’s risk 8 fr: k. The Comp 8
market risk through a treasury department, which eval and ises independent control over the entire process of market risk management. The treasury department
ds risk T objectives and policies, which are approved by Board of Directors. The activities of this department include management of cash resources,

borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies.

The Company’s risk management policies are estabhshed to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor
d regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The

risks and adherence to hmm Risk p and sy are

Comp hrough its g and dards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment.

The audit committee oversees how i pli with the Company’s risk policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk
management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit iftee is d in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both

Is and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

regular and adhoc reviews of risk

a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a or P
from the Companys receivables from customers and investment securities. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure.

y to 2 financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises pri

Trade receivubles
The Comp id factors such as credit track record in the market and past dealings for

The Company ds credit to s in normal course of b
of credit to To credit risk, the Company periodically the fi | reliability of the customer, taking into account the financial
bles are regularly monitored to

condition, current economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivables. Outstandi r
make an assessment of recoverability. Receivables are provided as doubtful / written off, when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Where receivables have been
provided / written off, the Company continues regular follow up, engage with the cust s, legal options / any other di ilable with the objective of recovering
these dings.The C is not exposed to ion of credit risk to any one single customer since services are provided to vast spectrum. The Company also

takes security deposits, advances , post dated cheques etc from its customers, which mitigate the credit risk to an extent,

Cash and cash equivalents
The Company held cash and cash equivalents with credit worthy banks of Rs. 1077.68 Lakhs and Rs 1551.69 lakhs as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 respectively. The

credit worthiness of such banks and financial institutions is evaluated by the on an on going basis and is considered to be good.

Exposure to credit risk
The allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables during the year was Rs. 4.60 lakhs ( 2022: Rs 71.93 lakhs)

The gross carrying amount of financial assets, net of impai losses ised represents the credit exp . The i Xp to credit risk as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 is as follows:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Financial assets for which loss allowances are measured using 12 months Expected
Credit Losses (ECL) :
Trade receivables 193.91 18931
* The t beli that the unimpaired that are past due are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour and extensive analysis of customer

credit risk.
The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows.

[Particulars Amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021 117.38
 Amount written off during the year -

[impairment loss recognised 71.93
Balance as at 31 March 2022 189.31
| Amount written off during the year -

Impairment loss recognised 4.60
Balance as at 31 March 2023 193.91

The Company has no other financial assets that are past due but not impaired.




Empire Mall Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

{Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 39 : Financial instruments ~ Fair values and risk z t (Ce d) :
B) Fi ial risk t
b. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations iated with its fi ia] labilities that are settled by

delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Company’s reputation.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company s fi ial liabilities at the bal sheet date based on contractual undiscounted
repayment obligations.

Particulars Note Carrying
amount Total
As at 31 March 2023
Non - derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 15,329.84 15,329.84 881.00 4,634.00 9.814.84
Trade payables 23 376.49 376.49 376.49 - -
Other financial liabilities 19&24 | 1,060.30 1,060.30 32.52 1,027.78 -
16.766.63 16,766.63 1.290,01 5,661.78 9,814.84

As at 31 March 2022
Non - derivative financial liabilities
Borrowings 18 17.211.55 17,211.55 - 225819 14,953.36
Trade payables 23 376.88 376.88 376.88 - -
Other financial liabilities 19& 24 910.87 910.87 59.15 851.72 -

) 18.499.30 18.499.30 436.03 3,109.91 14.953.36

¢. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. Financial instruments
affected by market risk include borrowings and bank deposits. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return,

Interest rare risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fl b of changes in market interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk:
The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates to fixed deposits and borrowings from NBFC and other parties.

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to the g t of the Company is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022

Fixed-rate instruments:

Financial asset (Bank deposits) 673.03 162.02

Financial liabilities (Borrowings) (881.00 -
_(207.97) 162.02 |

Variable-rate instruments:

Financial liabilities (Borrowings) (14,448.84)| (17.211,55)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

The Company's fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in IND AS 107, since neither the carrying
amount nor the future cash flow will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates.




Empire Mall Private Limited }

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
us at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 39 : Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (Continued) :

B) Fi ial risk t

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables
held constant. the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Increase in basis points 50 basis points 50 basis points
Effect on loss before tax, increase by 72,24 86.06
Decrease in basis points 50 basis points 50 basis points
Effect on loss before tax, decrease by 72.24 86.06

The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently observable market environment, showing a significantly lower
volatility than in prior years.

Foreign currency risk
The Company has negligible exposure to currency risk since almost all the tr: tions of the Company are d inated in Indian Rupees.

Commodity and Other price risk
The Company is not exposed to the commodity and other price risk.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(Currency : Indian Rupees in Lakhs unless otherwise stated)

Note 40 : Capital Management

‘The Company manages the capital structure by a balanced mix of debt and equity. Necessary adjustments are made m the capital structure considenng
the factors vis-a-vis the changes in the general economic conditions, available options of financing and the impact of the same on the liquidity
position. Higher leverage is used for funding more liquid working capital needs and conservative leverage is used for long-term capital investments.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the financial year ended 31 March 2023. The Company calculates the level of
debt capital required to finance the working capital requirements using traditional and modified financial metrics including leverage/gearing ratios and
asset turnover ratios.

As of halance sheet date. leverage ratios is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Total debt (Refer note 18) i5,329.84 17,211.55
Less: cash and bank balances (Refer note 12 and 13) 1,750.71 1,713.71
Adjusted net debt 13,579.13 15,497.84
Total equity (Refer note 17 and 17.1) 21,740.51 19,895.69
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio (times) 0.62 078

Note 41 : Operating leases

ii)

Leases as lessee
The Company has taken residential premises situated at Aurangabad on operating lease for its employee. The Company has entered into a leave and

license agreement for using of its office premises for 11 months, with an option to renew the lease after this period. The lease payments recognised in
the statement of profit and loss is Rs 1.68 lakhs (31 March 2022: Rs 1.94 lakhs).

There is no future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease.

Leases as lessor
The Company has given its retail mall situated at Aurangabad on lease/ leave and licence. The cancellable leases are renewable by mutual consent on

mutually agreeable terms. The lease income recognised in the statement of profit and loss is Rs 3188.45 lakhs (31 March 2022: 1759.87 lakhs)

The future minimum lease payments for non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Within less than 1 year 457.63 93.44
Between one and five vears 176,39 37.83
Later than five vears - -

Note 42 : Disclosure with regards to section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013

i) For Investment refer note no. 10
ii) For loans given:

: Rate of
Particul
articulars Interest Purpose of Loan| 31 March 2023| 31 March 2022
Loans to Hagwood Commercial Developer Private Limited, fellow subsidiary 10.6% : 3,728.05 3,387.41
Working
Loans to Alliance Mall Developers Co Private Limited, fellow subsidiary 10.6% Capital 2,305.62 2,194.61

Loan to Festival Valley Developers Co Private Limited 10.5% 9,957.60 8,968.17
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Note 43 : IND AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

a) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers

The Company believes that the information provided under Note 27- Revenue from operations best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and

uncertainty of revenue and cash flows are affected by industry, market and other economic factors.

b) Reconciliation of contract liabilities and its significant changes

Particulars
Advance from contract customers (contract liability)

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

At the beginning of the reporting period 796.30 830.00
Cumulative catch up adjustments to revenue affecting contract liability 292.49 33.79
Additional advances received (net of refund) - -
Significant financing component - -
At the end of the reporting period 503.81 796.30

The amount of Rs Nil recognised in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year has been recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March

2023.

¢) Reconciliation of revenue as per contract price and as recognised in the Statement of profit and loss:

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Income from sale of services- leasing 4.684.33 2.923.03
Adjustments towards discount, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, etc - -
Total 4,684.33 2,923.03
Other operating revenue- leasing ) 269.48 111.10
Adjustments towards discount, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions, etc - B
Total 269.48 111.10
d) Reconciliation of contract assets (unbilled revenue)

Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
At the beginning of the reporting period 2.44 2.50
Revenue recognised that was included in the unearned revenue balance at the beginning of the reporting period 3.9 (0.06)
Unearned revenue recognised however invoice for the same is not raised during the reporting period -

At the end of the reporting period 6.34 2.44
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fdantial

¢) Performance obligation
The Company is engaged in the busi of developing, owning and operating of shopping malls, ial and

All the contracts entered with the customers consists of a single performance obligation thereby the consideration allocated to ;he performance
bligation is based on standalone selling prices.

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of retail, residential and ial units to s for an amount that reflects the consideration
which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those units. The trigger for revenue recognition is normally completion of the project or receipt
of approvals on completion from relevant authorities or intimation to the customer of completion, post which the contract becomes non-cancellable by

the parties.

The revenue is measured at the transaction price agreed under the contract. In certain cases, the Company has contracts where the period between the
transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds one year. Asa consequence, the Company adjusts
the transaction price for the effects of 8 significant financing component.

Any costs incurred that do not contribute to satisfying performance obligations are excluded from the Company’s input methods of revenue
recognition as the amounts are not reflective of our ransferring control of the system to the Significant judgment is required to evaluate
‘assumptions related to the amount of net contract revenues, including the impact of any performance incentives, liquidated damages, and other forms

of variable consideration.

If estimated incremental costs on any contract, are greater than the net s, the Company recognises the entire estimated loss in the

period the loss becomes known.

f) Tr: ion price all dtor ining performance obligation

The aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially unsatisfied) as at March 31,
2023 is Rs Nil (as at March 31, 2022 is Rs 597.40 lakhs), which will be recognised as revenue over a period of 2-3 years .

The Company applies practical expedient of Ind AS 115 and does not disclose information about the amount of the transaction price allocated to the

remaining performance obligation and an explanation of when the entity pects to recognise that as for ali reporting periods
presented before the date of initial application.

Note 44 : Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities
Provision of Section 135(1) b pplicable to Company . However, the average net profits of the Company for the i diately preceding three

. Therefore. the Company is not required to spend any amounts during the current financial year for

previous year as per Section 198 are negati
Corporate Social Responsibility.

Particulars 31 March 2022
Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 5.70

A t of expenditure incurred 7.14

Shortfall at the end of the year -1.44

Total of previous year shortfall 1.44

Short fall at the end of year 0.00

Reason for shortfall NA

Contribution to PM care
Nature of CSR Activities fund, contribution towards |
blind people

Provision movement 31 March 2022
Opening provision 0.00

Provision created during the year 7.14

Amount paid/incurred 7.14

Closing provision 0.00

Note 45 : Note on regrouping and Reclassifications

Previous year figures have been re-grouped / re-classified whenever necessary, to conform to current year preszntation,
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